
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 
Agenda 
 
 

Date Tuesday 5 September 2017 
 

Time 6.00 pm 
 

Venue Crompton Suite, Civic Centre, Oldham, West Street, Oldham, OL1 1NL 
 

Notes 
 

1. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST- If a Member requires advice on any 
item involving a possible declaration of interest which could affect his/her 
ability to speak and/or vote he/she is advised to contact Paul Entwistle or 
Lori Hughes at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 
2. CONTACT OFFICER for this agenda is Lori Hughes Tel. 0161 770 5151 
or email lori.hughes@oldham.gov.uk  
 
3. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - Any Member of the public wishing to ask a 
question at the above meeting can do so only if a written copy of the 
question is submitted to the contact officer by 12 noon on Thursday, 31 
August 2017. 
 
4.  FILMING - The Council, members of the public and the press may 
record / film / photograph or broadcast this meeting when the public and 
the press are not lawfully excluded.  Any member of the public who attends 
a meeting and objects to being filmed should advise the Constitutional 
Services Officer who will instruct that they are not included in the filming. 
 
Please note that anyone using recording equipment both audio and visual 
will not be permitted to leave the equipment in the room where a private 
meeting is held. 
 
Recording and reporting the Council’s meetings is subject to the law 
including the law of defamation, the Human Rights Act, the Data Protection 
Act and the law on public order offences. 
 

 MEMBERSHIP OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
 Councillors Dean, Goodwin (Vice-Chair), McLaren (Chair), Toor, Williams, 

Williamson, A Hussain and J Larkin 
 

 

Item No  

1   Apologies For Absence  

2   Declarations of Interest  

Public Document Pack



 
 

 To Receive Declarations of Interest in any Contract or matter to be discussed at 
the meeting. 

3   Urgent Business  

 Urgent business, if any, introduced by the Chair 

4   Public Question Time  

 To receive Questions from the Public, in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

5   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 6) 

 The Minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Board held on 18th July 2017 are 
attached for approval. 

6   Resident First Programme - Update (Pages 7 - 16) 

7   Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme (Pages 17 - 24) 

 The Board is requested to note the Overview and Scrutiny Board Work 
Programme for 2017/18. 

8   General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions (Pages 25 - 26) 

 The Board is requested to note the decisions that have been taken under Rule 
16 or 17 of the Council’s Constitution since the last meeting of the Overview and 
Scrutiny Board held on 18th July 2017. 
 
If a detailed explanation is required and officer is to attend the meeting to provide 
further information, please contact Constitutional Services by 12:00 noon on 
Thursday, 31st August 2017. 

9   Key Decision Document (Pages 27 - 38) 

 The Board is requested to note the Council’s Key Decision Document. 

10   Date and Time of Next Meeting  

 The date and time of the next Overview and Scrutiny Board will be Tuesday, 17th 
October 2017 at 6.00 p.m. 
 

 



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 
18/07/2017 at 6.00 pm 

 
 

Present: Councillor McLaren (Chair)  
Councillors Dean, Goodwin (Vice-Chair), Toor, Williams, 
A Hussain and J Larkin 
 

 Also in Attendance: 
 Lori Hughes Constitutional Services 
 Dami Awobajo Head of Business Intelligence 
 Jon Bloor Head of Enterprise and Skills 
 Gill Hoar Head of Access and Inclusion 
 Caroline Lee Head of Revenues, Benefits and 

Business Support 
 Jon Taylor Intelligence Officer 

 

 

1   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Williamson 
and Councillor Harkness. 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

There were no declarations of interest received. 

3   URGENT BUSINESS   

There were no items of urgent business received. 

4   PUBLIC QUESTION TIME   

There were no public questions received. 

5   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING   

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board held on 13th June 2017 be approved as a correct record. 

6   MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE 
MEETING  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Health Scrutiny Sub-
Committee meeting held on 28th March 2017 be noted. 
 

7   MINUTES OF THE PERFORMANCE AND VALUE FOR 
MONEY SELECT COMMITTEE  

 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the Performance and Value for 
Money Select Committee held on 9th March 2017 be noted. 
 

8   OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 
FOR 2017/18  

 

The Board gave consideration to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Board Work Programme.  The following was highlighted to the 
Board: 
 
1. Inclusion Review – through early engagement it had 

become clear that co-ordination was needed with a wide 
range of services who worked toward the same 
outcomes.  Advice had been taken and the timeline had Page 1

Agenda Item 5



 

been slipped in order for a coordinated development 
session to take place as well as meetings with individuals 
and heads of service.   

 
2. Education Task and Finish Group – The Chair informed 

members that the scope of the group had been widened 
from Pupil Premium to Disadvantage in its entirety would 
now be addressed.  A meeting would be arranged for the 
group to meet with head teachers and a strategy would 
be developed.  Members expressed concern about the 
representation of headteachers as a cross section would 
be needed to represent the different sections of Oldham.  
Members were informed it was intended to review what 
schools would be visited and that all schools would be 
sent a questionnaire for views to be sought and for best 
practice to be identified and shared. 

 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme be 

noted. 
2. The update on the Inclusion Review be noted. 
3. The update on the Education Task and Finish Group be 

noted. 
 

9   UNIVERSAL CREDIT UPDATE   

The Board gave consideration to information on the roll out of 
Universal Credit in Oldham which included details of sanctions 
applied to Universal Credit claimants, early observations on the 
roll out in the borough and the ongoing work for the mitigation of 
impact for residents.  Universal credit replaced six legacy 
benefits.  The total transfer would not be completed until 2022.   
Additional support was provided to claimants.  The Department 
for Work and Pensions had resourcing issues and were 
recruiting additional staff.  There were concerns for those 
residents who were in short-term accommodation and as well as 
those with language barrier issues.  The DWP recognised the 
problems with short term residentials and were looking to 
change the rules but this required ministerial approval. Members 
were advised of transfer times of five to six weeks.  The DWP 
had been asked for statistics, but officers had been advised that 
these were not published.  From early observations, deductions 
could be high.  The Citizen’s Advice Bureau had informed the 
Council of an increase of universal credit claimants accessing 
their service.  Members were also briefed on the use of 
sanctions and provided with case studies.  The Council was 
working with stakeholders and partners to maximise the use of 
the council tax reduction scheme and the take up of free school 
meals entitlement.  The Council’s Welfare Rights Team were 
also offering support to applicants. 
 
Member queried the 5 – 6 week delay and who it affected.  It 
was confirmed that all applicants would be affected by the 
migration and had to apply through the digital channel.  
Members asked about those with special needs who may have Page 2



 

trouble with digital access and were informed that help was 
available through Access Oldham.  Members queried the 
application and severity of sanctions and were informed the 
DWP determined the sanction and that process applied was 
unclear. 
 
Members expressed concern on the number of residents who 
were under extreme pressure and had no money which caused 
distress.  The number of foodbank certificates issued to 
residents had grown.  Concerns were also raised on the impact 
on landlords as direct payments had given confidence.  
Concerns were also raised on the most vulnerable, especially 
children and young people. 
 
Members sought and received clarification on the rent arrears 
and were advised that this information was not available.  
Research would be undertaken to assess the impact on social 
landlords.  A free school meals portal would be launched and 
updated in real time.  Schools had been positive and in the new 
academic year awareness would be raised on eligibility.  Work 
coaches would also raise awareness of free school meals. 
 
Members sought and received clarification on the appeals 
process and were informed that these could take a long time 
and there were appeals at a local and regional level. 
 
Members were informed that there were regular meetings with 
Registered Social Landlords and the DWP.  Members asked 
about private landlords and were informed that it would be part 
of a communications plan with the selective licensing scheme.   
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1.   The information provided on Universal Credit be noted. 
2. The DWP be asked to attend the O&S Board meeting in 

September. 
3. An update on Universal Credit be received by the Board 

in January 2018. 
 

10   OLDHAM WORK AND SKILLS STRATEGY UPDATE   

The Board gave consideration to an update on the progress 
related to key components of the Work and Skills Strategy.  The 
strategy sought to improve population skills which supported 
Oldham’s goals. The four strategic goals were: 
 

 Create Jobs which included targets for Phase 2 of Get 
Oldham Working 

 Social Regeneration and In-Work Progression which 
included the new pilot Career Advancement Services 

 Deliver the OESC and improve the colleges, which 
included a commitment to support the sustainability of the 
post-Area Based Review settlement for Oldham. 

Page 3



 

 Support a thriving private sector, which included better 
representation of the six priority employment sectors in 
the partnership framework. 

 
The report outlined the current position on the 12 outcome areas 
which included: 
 

 Population Skills Outcomes; 

 Provider Performance; 

 Apprenticeships; 

 Schools; 

 GM Area Based Review of Colleges; 

 Sectoral priorities; 

 Get Oldham Working; 

 Progression Strategy; 

 Advanced Learning Loans Strategy; 

 Higher Level Skills and HE Strategy; 

 Community Learning and Lifelong Learning Provision; 
and 

 DWP Commissioned National employment Support 
Programmes. 

 
It was highlighted to the Board that Oldham College had seen 
an improvement and the Area Based Review was no longer 
feasible.  The Council were supporting the College in retaining 
its status as a single college.  Members were informed of the 
change in the allocation of adult education budgets.   
 
Members asked about the Area Based Review and core 
structure required in Oldham to meet the needs of local 
employers.  There was a dialogue with local businesses and six 
network champions.  Members sought and received clarification 
on the advanced learning loans for residents learning at Level 3 
and Level 4 with providers in the borough being targeted.  The 
loans were an opportunity for the resident to take control.  
Learning could be undertaken through online services such as 
the Open University. 
 
Members sought clarification on careers guidance and were 
informed that OESC would be looking to support this.  Members 
sought and received clarification on the targets set and the 
targets would be revised. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The update on the Work and Skills Strategy be noted. 
2. A further meeting be arranged with the Principal of 

Oldham College for an update on the Area Based 
Review. 

3. An update on the Work and Skills Strategy be received by 
the Board in 12 month’s time. 

 
Notes:   
 
1. Cllr Dean left the meeting during this item. Page 4



 

2. Cllr A. Hussain left the meeting at the end of this item. 
 

11   SUSTAINABLE CITIES FOOD NETWORK UPDATE   

Members were provided with an update on the action points 
raised by Board Members 
 
RESOLVED that the update on the Sustainable Cities Food 
Network be noted. 
 

12   GENERAL EXCEPTIONS AND URGENT DECISIONS   

The Board gave consideration to two decisions authorised under 
Rule 17 of the Council’s Constitution. 
 
RESOLVED that the General Exception and Urgency Decisions 
related to Additional Funding Allocation to Oasis Academy, 
Oldham to place Additional Pupil Numbers on their Roll from 
September 2017 and the Proposed Upgrade to the UTC to meet 
the Demand for Pupil Places in Oldham in September 2017 be 
noted. 
 

13   KEY DECISION DOCUMENT   

The Board gave consideration to the Council’s Key Decision 
Document. 
 
Members raised the issue of the Royton Town Centre Master 
Plan. 
 
RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Key Decision Document be noted. 
2. An update be requested on the Royton Town Centre 

Master Plan. 
 

14   GREATER MANCHESTER COMBINED AUTHORITY 
(GMCA) FORWARD PLAN  

 

The Board gave consideration to the Forward Plan of Strategic 
Decisions for the Greater Manchester Combined Authority. 
 
RESOLVED that the Forward Plan of Strategic Decisions for the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority be noted. 
 

15   DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING   

RESOLVED that the date and time of the next Overview and 
Scrutiny Board meeting to be held on Tuesday, 5th September 
2017 at 6.00 p.m. be noted. 
 

The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.32 pm 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

The Resident First Programme has been developed as part of our co-operative approach 
to make access to services easy and efficient by enabling residents to self-serve and stay 
informed while continuing to support those who need it. 
 

The programme design principles include: 
 

 Co-operative Customer Culture; 

 Enabling Self-Help; 

 Thinking like a Resident; 

 Access Channels and  

 Data to Intelligence. 
 

Executive Summary 
 

This paper follows on from the initial report provided to Overview and Scrutiny on Tuesday 
14 March 2017 which provided an outline of the programme. This report provides an 
update on: 
 

 Background to the programme; 

 Progress to date in phase one of the programme; 

 Member engagement; 

 Updated financial position and 

 Key issues and questions for Overview and Scrutiny to discuss.  
 
Recommendations 
 

Comments and feedback are invited – please see section five. 

Report to OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD 

 

Resident First Programme Update 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
Cllr Jabbar, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Finance & HR  
 

Programme Sponsor:   
Ray Ward, Executive Director for Corporate & Commercial Services  
 

Programme Senior Responsible Officer: 
Helen Gerling, Corporate Transition Lead, ext. 3468 
 

Report Authors:  
Nicola Strapps, Resident First Programme Manager, ext. 1830 
Fran Lautman, Customer Development Manager, ext. 8145 
 
 

Tuesday 5 September 2017 
 
 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



 

Resident First Programme Update                                         Tuesday 5 September 2017 
 

1 Background 
 

1.1 The Resident First programme has been designed to embed the Council’s co-
operative approach with both residents and services.  The programme will make 
access to services easy and efficient by enabling residents to self-serve and stay 
informed while continuing to support those who need it. This will result in a 
transformed end-to-end customer journey, aligned with the Council’s co-operative 
customer strategy and reducing the cost of transactions. By providing self-serve as 
the primary access channel, we will increase our efficiency and make best use of the 
resources we have remaining to serve more complex cases or residents that require 
more support.  
 

1.2 This Business Case for the Resident First programme was endorsed by EMT on 8 
March 2016 and by Leadership on 21 March 2016. Funding for the revenue 
elements of the initiative is by means of an earmarked reserve established at the end 
of 2015/16.  This reserve has been incorporated within the Councils Reserves 
Policy.  The Resident First Reserve is identified as a corporate priority within the 
overarching Transformation Reserve.  

 

2 Phase 1 – Progress to Date  

 

2.1 Phase one of the programme commenced in autumn 2016. Phase one includes six 
service projects focussing on specific interactions with Council. As described in the 
previous Overview and Scrutiny paper on 14 March 2017, the projects were 
identified using a prioritisation system focussing on which services should be 
reviewed first. The service projects in phase one are illustrated in Figure 1 showing 
current phase of the four stage process – understand, design, build, and deliver.  
 
Figure 1 – Phase 1 Service Projects and current stage  

 

Page 8



 

  3 

 

2.2 The following tables provides an outline of each project and how it will benefit 
residents and the Council.  
 

In-year School Transfers – Moving School Transfers Online  
 

What we’re doing Why 

New online application process   9/5 services becomes 24/7 service 

 Time savings for residents and Council 

 Postage savings 

 Environmental  benefits 

Progress Tracking for Residents   Residents will be automatically updated 
by the system as their application 
progresses 

 Reduced number of resident chase ups 

Go Live – January 2018 
 
 

Registrars – Supporting Residents at their Time of Need   
 

What we’re doing Why 

Introducing online “tell us once”  More convenient for residents  

 9/5 service becomes 24/7 service 

Text message reminder service 
for appointments 

 Residents will receive appointment 
reminders 

 Reduced number of missed 
appointments 

Death Certificate stamps for 
GPs 

 Assist GPs to get paperwork right first 
time 

 Better service for residents with fewer 
delays 

 Time savings for residents, GPs, and the 
Council 

Go Live – September 2017 
 
 

Fly-Tipping and Environmental Online Reporting  

What we’re doing Why 

Improved online form  Easy to use form 

 Time savings for residents and Council 

Progress tracking for residents   Residents will be automatically updated 
by the system as their request 
progresses 

 Time saving for the Council 

 Reduced number of resident chase ups 

Better data – better results  Build up a picture of fly-tipping hotspots 
using data 

 Proactively target problem areas to 
reduce number of incidents and catch 
those responsible 

Page 9



 

  4 

Go Live – September 2017 
 
 
 

Licensing – Licensing is going online   
 

What we’re doing Why 

Online applications for taxi 
drivers, vehicles and operators  

 More convenient, no need to visit the 
office 

 Reduction in transaction time/costs 

 9/5 service becomes 24/7 service 

 Time savings for residents 

Online payments for license 
applications 

 Quicker, speeds up the process 

 Reduction in transactions time/costs  

 9/5 service becomes 24/7 service 

 Time savings for residents 

Customer to upload 
documentation online  

 Time savings for residents 

 Reduction in transaction time/costs 

 Improved document security 

Online booking for 
appointments, MOTs, and 
knowledge tests  

 Reduced missed appointments 

 More convenient for customers 

 Quicker, speeds up the process 

Reminder text and email service 
for renewing licenses 

 Better communication with customers 

 Reduction in postages costs and time 
spent on mail outs 

Go Live -  September 2017 
 
 

Highways – Highways Online Reporting  
 

What we’re doing Why 

Improved online form  Easy to use form 

 More Highways information online 

 Time savings for residents and council 

Progress tracking for residents   Residents will be automatically updated 
by the system as their request 
progresses 

 Reduced number of resident chase ups 

Better data, better results   Rebuild up a picture of Highway problem 
areas using data 

 Use data to support decisions 

Go Live – September 2017 
 
 

Revenues and Benefits – Growing My Account    
 

What we’re doing Why 

Paperless Billing   More convenient for residents 

 Encourages instant payment 

 Postage savings 

Page 10



 

  5 

 Environmental benefits 

Online Council Tax payments   9/5 service to 24/7 service 

 Encourages residents to deal with 
problems rather than wait 

 Time savings for residents and Council 

New online forms for single 
person discount and change of 
address 

 9/5 service to 24/7 service 

 Easy to report a change 

 Time savings for residents and Council 

New online free school meal 
entitlement checker for schools  

 Easy, fast, and secure access to 
information 

 Time savings for schools and Council 

New online Housing Benefit 
payment checker for Landlords 

 Easy, fast, and secure access to 
information 

 24/7, real time information updates 

 Time savings for Landlords and Council 

Go Live – August 2017 
 
 

2.3 In addition to the six service projects, phase 1 also includes three cross-cutting 
projects designed to drive improvements across the Council. These projects will 
continue into further phases of the programme. The cross-cutting projects are listed 
in Figure 2. 
 

Figure 2 – Phase 1 Projects and current stage   

 
2.4 The following tables provide an outline of each project and how it will benefit 

residents and the Council.  
 

Digital Project – Workstream 1  
 

What we’re doing Why 

Workstream 1: Refreshing the 
look and feel of the Oldham 
Council website. 

 Bring up to date with the modern customer 
services residents have come to expect 

 Easier for residents to find key services 
and pages 

 Making sure content is accurate, up to-
date and relevant 

Page 11



 

  6 

 Easier to get messages across to 
residents 

 Improving the customer journey 

 Collecting data that enables to better serve 
our residents 

Workstream 2: Delivering an 
online payment solution 

 Allowing residents to pay for services more 
quickly and easily without needing to call 
or visit 

Workstream 3: Delivering an 
integrated online booking 
solution  

 Allowing residents to book services more 
quickly and easily without needing to call 
or visit. 

Workstream 1: Website refresh – January 2018 
Workstream 2: Payments and Bookings – Delivered in Phase 2   
 
 

Contact Centre – Modernising our Telephony Support     
 

What we’re doing Why 

Upgrading the Telephony platform   To help us to respond to 
telephone calls more effectively 

 To keep up-to-date with new 
functionality  

Introducing multi media contact 
management software 

 Get better data and 
management information 

 Manage calls and emails more 
efficiently 

 Time savings for residents 

 More flexibility for agents  

Changing how the switchboard works  Stop double handling resident 
calls  

 Reducing call volumes and cost 
for the Council  

Taking the learning from the pilot and 
launching Live Chat  

 Quicker response to residents 
enquiries 

 Encourage self-serve 

 More personalised online 
experience 

Go Live – September 2017 
 
 
 

Strategic Face to Face  

What we’re doing Why 

Understanding our current face to face 
offer  

 To identify how we can continue 
to build on supporting residents 
who need our support  

Understand stage – December 2017 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

  7 

2.5 The programme team are capturing learning from the first phase of the programme 
to inform how the second phase will be approached. The second phase will be 
developed, costed, and formally reviewed by the Resident First Programme Board, 
EMT and the Deputy Leader in his capacity at Member Lead for the programme 
before commencing.  
 

3 Member Engagement  

 

3.1 The previous Overview and Scrutiny paper from 14 March 2017 focussed on how the 

programme can support and engage with Members. It was agreed by Overview and 

Scrutiny that a quarterly member forum would be established. Subsequently, the 

following objective has been established: 
 

The objective of the group is to provide Members with regular updates on 

implementation and benefits resulting from the programme and to gain Member’s 

insight for the programme as representatives of residents and local businesses. It 

will also provide members the opportunity to constructively challenge, support and 

champion changes made by the programme. 
 

3.2 The first session was held on Tuesday 20 June 2017 and focussed on the following:  

 Raising awareness of Programme aims, objectives and benefits 

 Showing members new My Account functionality for Revenues and Benefits 
and the new online fly tipping web form 

 Sharing an overview of each projects in a marketplace 

 Listened to members feedback  
 

3.3 The session was attended by twelve members including three cabinet members. The 

session received positive feedback. Key learning for the programme to address 

includes the following: 

 Supporting members to understand key issues reported at a ward level 

 Ensuring residents who can’t read English are supported, potentially including 

digital translate options 

 Ensuring we are bridging the digital divide to ensure residents can access 

services online and benefit from the improved service 

 Keep making it easy to report issues online and support members with how-to 

guides to use 

 Widening the use of My Account beyond Revenues and Benefits 

 Consider how we can make it easier for residents to interact with all public 

services vs. ‘council’ services, e.g. housing – are we joined up? 
 

3.4 The following actions will take place to reflect the feedback from Members: 

 Members welcomed the event and the next session will be organised for early 

October 

 Members have been set a short questionnaire to gather formal feedback from 

the June session to ensure the programme can listen and learn from the 

feedback 

 Prioritise developing the technology that will enable My Account to be used for 

any online service 

Page 13



 

  8 

 Aligning the programme to organisational approach to data and intelligence 

and bring Business Intelligence closer to the programme  

 Further Member engagement with how-to guides each time a new service is 

launched.   

 Ensure resident journeys in housing (and other public services) are captured 

in the face to face project and consider this with respect to access channels. 

 Explore the support available to residents with English as a second language, 

including digital translation services possible. 

 

4 Financial Management  
 

4.1 Regular Programme financial monitoring is in place in respect of Capital and 
Revenue expenditure to ensure that spend is within the budgets agreed for the 
programme. This progress is then shared with the Programme Board and Deputy 
Leader as part of the monthly Highlight Report.  

 
5 Key Issues and Questions for Overview and Scrutiny to Discuss 

 

5.1 Do the new Member engagement plans meet the commissioned mandate from 
Overview and Scrutiny with respect to keeping Members informed and engaged with 
the programme and progress made? 
 

6 Links to Corporate Outcomes 
 

6.1 Corporate Plan– the Resident First programme will strengthen our co-operative 
approach to delivering services to residents. The programme supports the third 
corporate objective in getting the basics right. This will be realised by simplifying 
customer journeys and making access to services easier. Providing this greater 
access to self-service will also make sure we use our resources effectively by 
utilising them for more complex queries. We are also focussed on capturing the 
voice of the resident throughout the programme methodology. This will be 
undertaken through capturing and analysing feedback, web analytics, and engaging 
with residents who use our services and those who don’t. This supports the final 
strand of the third corporate objective. 
 

6.2 Customer Access Strategy – the programme will ensure a consistent approach to 
accessing services through the programme methodology and programme tools. This 
will ensure that channels are rationalised and link together to improve ease of 
access.  
 

6.3 IT strategy – the emerging IT strategy will guide (and vice versa) focus on IT that 
improves access to the Council for residents. The IT strategic roadmap is now 
aligned with Resident First in order to deliver the digital capabilities it requires to 
enable the identified need, aspiration, and benefits.  
 

6.4 District working strategy and Library strategy – this will influence the way that 
services organise to achieve a Resident Focus by clearly outlining what type of face 
to face support is available where and when. 
 

6.5 Early Help Offer – embedding a more rounded approach to supporting residents’ 
needs within an environment of reducing ‘response’ and enhancing ‘prevention’. 
 

Page 14



 

  9 

6.6 Staff Engagement – colleagues are invited to ‘do their bit’ by highlighting how we 
improve the way we deliver our services either as a member of the Oldham Team or 
as a resident. Mechanisms to capture this feedback are underway.  
 

6.7 Co-operative Values – We will work together in partnership with residents, partners, 
and services to improve self-help and self-service access. We will reshape our 
website, Contact Centre and face to face access to deliver this.  
 

6.8 Co-operative Behaviours – We are aiming to capture each behaviour through the 
programme methodology. We will work with a resident focus by bringing data, insight 
and the voice of the resident into each project. We will support Local Leaders by 
making sure that Members have sight of the changes we make to services to 
improve self-serve access and what the most effective route and channel is to 
resolve issues, reports, claims, and queries. We are encouraging colleagues to be 
committed to the borough by sharing their ideas and experiences as staff and as 
residents to improve how we deliver services. We are working together with services 
to take ownership and drive change to improve our current service access. Finally, 
we are encouraging high performance by clearing baselining programme benefits 
and measuring them to understand how successful the changes made have been. 

 
7. Additional Supporting Information 
 

7.1 None 
 

8.  Capital Financial Implications 
  

8.1       There are no additional capital implications arising from this report. 
 

8.2 Provision to undertake phase 1 works exists within the current capital programme. 
 

8.3 Funding required to undertake further phases of works will be addressed as part of 
the ICT Capital Strategy. 

 (Jit Kara- Senior Accountant) 
 

  

9.  Revenue Financial Implications 
 

9.1        There are no additional revenue implications associated with this report. 
 

9.2 Funding for the revenue elements of the initiative is by means of an earmarked 
reserve established at the end of 2015/16.  This reserve has been incorporated 
within the Councils Reserves Policy.  The Resident First Reserve is identified as a 
corporate priority within the overarching Transformation Reserve. With the funding in 
place, phase one of Resident First programme has therefore progressed and will be 
subject to review, including measuring benefits for that phase (specifically residents’ 
outcomes). The initial projection estimated that the first phase, including cost 
modelling, would require £320k of revenue funds.  

  

9.3 Subsequently, a further £96k funding has been identified for specific items within 
Phase 1 and giving an overall financial envelope of £416k.  The project is currently 
forecast to be delivered within the revised budget allocation funded from the 
reserves available. 

(Mike Ward – Senior Accountant) 
 

10.  Communication Comments  
 

Page 15



 

  10 

10.1    A detailed communications plan has been developed to support the delivery of the 
Resident First programme. Working closely with the programme team, we have 
identified relevant stakeholders and have now begun the implementation of the plan. 
Plans have also been developed to support delivery of individual projects within the 
Resident First Programme and we will continue to work alongside the team to ensure 
messages are clear and consistent. 

 

(Jane Rotherham, Assistant Head of Communications) 
 

Page 16



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 1 of 8 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD WORK PROGRAMME 2017/18 AND PERFORMANCE MONITORING PLAN 

 
PART A – MEETING PROGRAMME  

  
MEETING 
DATE & 
VENUE 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY OF ISSUE CABINET 
PORTFOLIO (link 
to Corporate 
Outcome) 

RESOLUTION / 
RECOMMENDATION 

Comments  

      

Tuesday, 13th 
June 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 1st 
June 2017 

Children’s Services – 
Getting to Good 
 

Update and Overview on 
the service and mock 
inspection 
 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1. The update on the Children’s 

Social Care ‘Getting to Good’ 
Improvement Plan be noted. 

2. The establishment of a Task and 
Finish Group on the issue of 
training be discussed at the next 
Health and Wellbeing Link 
Meeting. 

3. A further update on the 
Independent Review be 
presented to Board in January 
2018. 

Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Adult Safeguarding – 
Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards 

Update to the Board Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 
 

RESOLVED that: 
1.  The Deprivation of Liberty 

Safeguards (DoLS) Update, 
current position and areas of 
development be noted. 

2. A further update be received by 
the Overview and Scrutiny Board 
in 12 months’ time. 

Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

 Corporate Plan Refresh Economy and 
Enterprise 
(Reforming and 
Empowering Public 
Services) 

RESOLVED that: 
1.  The proposed Corporate Plan 

update and comments provided 
be noted. 

2. The crosscheck against Cabinet 
portfolio areas and Administration 
priorities be noted. 

3. An update on the Corporate Plan 

Requested via 
email 22 May 17  

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 7



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 2 of 8 

be presented to Board in 12 
months. 

 O&S Board Work 
Programme 

Review of the Work 
Programme for the 2017/18 
Municipal Year 

 RESOLVED that: 
1.  The O&S Work Programme for 

2017/18 be noted. 
2. Reports be explored on Libraries, 

Highways – 24 Hour Response 
and Transport for future meeting. 

 

 

 O&S Annual Report Summary of work 
completed by the O&S 
Board, PVFM and Health 
Scrutiny during the 2016/17 
Municipal Year. 
 

 RESOLVED that the Annual Report 
be commended to the Council 
meeting on 12 July 

 

      

Tuesday, 18th 
July 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports: 6th 
July 2017 

Get Oldham Working 
and Career 
Advancement 
Services (Work and 
Skills Strategy) 

Update to the Board Employment and 
Skills (A Working 
Borough) 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The update on the Work and 

Skills Strategy be noted. 
2. A further meeting be arranged 

with the Principal of Oldham 
College for an update on the 
Area Based Review. 

3. An update on the Work and Skills 
Strategy be received by the 
Board in 12 month’s time. 

 

Requested by the 
Board in July 2016 
and January 2017 

 Welfare Reform / 
Universal Credit 

Follow on from workshop 
including delays in 
Universal Credit, 
overpayments and 
sanctions. 

Finance & HR 
(Getting the Basics 
Right) 

RESOLVED that: 
 
1.  The information provided on 

Universal Credit be noted. 
2. The DWP be asked to attend the 

O&S Board meeting in 
September. 

3. An update on Universal Credit be 
received by the Board in January 
2018. 

 

Requested via Link 
Meeting 27 June 

P
age 18



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 3 of 8 

 Work Programme Standing Item  RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Overview and Scrutiny Board 

Work Programme be noted. 
2. The update on the Inclusion 

Review be noted. 
3. The update on the Education 

Task and Finish Group be noted. 
 

 

 Key Decision 
Document 

Standing Item  RESOLVED that: 
 
1. The Key Decision Document be 

noted. 
2. An update be requested on the 

Royton Town Centre Master 
Plan. 

 

 

      

Tuesday, 5th 
September 
2017, 6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
reports:  23rd 
August 2017 

Resident First 
Programme 

Update on the 
implementation 

Finance & HR 
(Empowering the 
Positive Reform of 
Public Services) 
 

 Requested by the 
Board in March 
2017 

 Community Shop Update on schemes Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives 
(Engaging and 
Resilient 
Communities) 

 Link Meeting, 27 
June 

      

      

Tuesday, 17th 
October 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 5th 

Universal Credit 
Sanctions 

DWP Representatives have 
been invited. 

Finance & HR 
(Empowering the 
Positive Reform of 
Public Services) 
 

  

P
age 19



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 4 of 8 

October 2017 

 Business Growth 
and Investment 
Strategy 

 Economy & 
Enterprise (A 
regenerating and 
confident borough) 
 

 Link Meeting 25 Jul 
2017 

 Tourism Strategy Update on the development 
of the Strategy 

Economy & 
Enterprise (Oldham 
is Open for 
Business) 
 

 Requested by the 
Board in March 
2017 

 Homelessness 
Strategy 

Update on Strategy and 
Action Plan 

Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives (Safer, 
stronger and striving 
communities) 

 Requested by the 
Board in January 
2017 

      

      

Tuesday, 28th 
November 2017 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 16th 
November 2017 

Regeneration 
Projects 

Update to the Board Economy & 
Enterprise (A 
Regenerating and 
Confident Borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Greater Manchester 
Spatial Framework 

Update on the Development Neighbourhoods & 
Cooperatives A 
regenerating and 
confident borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Academy 
Conversion and Free 
Schools  

Update to the Board Education and Early 
Years (An ambitious 
and socially mobile 
borough) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 
and March 2017 

 Generation Oldham Update and feedback on 
money saved through the 
scheme 

Finance and HR 
(Outcome Driven 
Services) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

 Two Year Plan for 
Delivering the Offer 
to 2 Year Olds (Early 

Update to included 
information regarding 
Looked After Children (To b 

Education and Early 
Years (Healthier 
Communities) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
November 2016 

P
age 20



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 5 of 8 

Years) and 3 and 4 
year olds 

referred to PVFM) 

 Transport Update on the 2040 
Strategy and Delivery Plan 

Environmental 
Services (A 
Regenerating and 
Confident Borough) 

 Requested by the 
Board in June 2017 

      

Tuesday, 16th 
January 2018 
6.00 p.m. 
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 4th 
January 2018 
 

Review of the Town 
Centre Parking 
Strategy 

Update on the Strategy and 
Parking Provision in the 
Town Centre 

Economy and 
Enterprise (Oldham 
is Open for 
Business) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
January 2017. 

 Children’s Social 
Care ‘Getting to 
Good’ Improvement 
Plan Update 

Update on the improvement 
plan and independent 
review 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Outcome Driven 
Services) 
 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
June 2017 

 Universal Credit Update on the roll out Finance & HR (Safer, 
Stronger and Striving 
Communities) 
 

 Updated requested 
by the Board in July 
2017 
 

 Street Charter Update on the 
implementation 

Policy & Governance 
(Outcome Driven 
Services) 

 Requested by the 
Board in October 
2016 

      

Tuesday, 6th 
March 2018 
6.00 p.m.  
 
Deadline for 
Reports: 
22nd February 
2018 
 

Selective Licensing 
Scheme 

Update on the impact of the 
scheme 

Neighbourhoods and 
Cooperatives (Safer, 
Stronger and Striving 
Communities) 

 Update requested 
by the Board in 
March 2017 

P
age 21



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 6 of 8 

 Virtual School Update on the work of the 
Virtual School 

Education and Early 
Years (An ambitious 
and socially mobile 
borough) 

1.  Update requested 
by the Board in 
Mach 2017 

 Social Value 
Framework 

Outcomes within the 
Framework 

Corporate and 
Commercial  
(Empowering the 
positive reform of 
public services) 
 

2.  Link Meeting, 25 
July 17 

    3.   

 

 

PART B – ONE OFF MEETINGS AND WORKSHOPS 
 

Date Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 
TBC Improving 

Individual  
Electoral 
Registration  

Workshop Corporate and 
Commercial  

July 2017 A workshop was held on 14th November 
2016.  A further meeting was agreed to 
be held in June 2017. 

 

TBC Community 
Cohesion 

Workshop Health and 
Wellbeing 

   

TBC Children’s Social 
Care Training 

Task and Finish Group 
to address training. 

Health and 
Wellbeing 

 The establishment of the group to be 
discussed at the Health and Wellbeing 
Link Meeting. 
 

 

TBC Education Task 
and Finish 
Group 

To discuss 
disadvantage 
(including the Pupil 
Premium) 

Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 
2017 

Discussion have taken place between 
the Chair of O&S Board and the Interim 
Director of Education & Early Years 

 

 Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding 
Hub 
 

Update on the 
development of the 
Hub 

Social Care and 
Safeguarding 
(Safer, Stronger 
and Striving 
Communities) 
 

 Requested by the Board in January 
2017; to be completed as a workshop 

 

 
 

P
age 22



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 7 of 8 

PART C – OUTSTANDING ISSUES – DATES TO BE DETERMINED 
 

When 
Discussed 

Title Summary of issue Directorate Timescales Notes Outcome 

 Social Value 
Framework 

 Corporate and 
Commercial 

March 2018 An Update was requested by the Board in 
September 2016. 

 

 National Tree 
Week 

 Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

 Raised by Councillor Williamson and 
agreed by Councillor Brownridge 

 

Council, 
September 
2016 

Making Oldham 
Council more 
Dementia 
Friendly 

 Health and 
Wellbeing 

 This issue is still progressing through 
Health Scrutiny.  A Task and Finish 
Group has been established and met in 
November and December.  In progress.  
 

 

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Libraries  Health and 
Wellbeing 

   

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Highways – 24 
Hour Response 

 Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

N/A It was agreed at a Link meeting that this 
was not necessary to go to Board at this 
time. 

 

O&S Board 
13 Jun 2017 

Transport  Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

October 2017   

O&S Board 
18 July 2017 

Inclusion Review Update to the Board Economy, Skills 
and 
Neighbourhoods 

January (TBC) An progress update was provided to the 
Board on 18 July. 

 

 
PART D – ACTIONS FROM PREVIOUS MEETINGS 

 

Date of Meeting Title of Report Directorate Action(s) Date Completed and Outcome 

 Multi-Agency Safeguarding Hub HWB Visit to be arranged in September 
2017 as a workshop 

 

18 July 2017 Work and Skills Strategy ESN Meeting to be arranged with the 
Principal of Oldham College to 
discuss the Area Based Review 

Email providing dates sent on 27 
July 

18 July 2017 Welfare Reform/Universal Credit C&C Invitation to DWP to come to Board 
in September 

Email providing dates sent 24 
July 

18 July 2017 Key Decision Document ESN Update on Royton Town Centre 
Master Plan 

Information received, 20 July. 

P
age 23



[O&S WP at 21/08/17 – 17/18 V5]        Page 8 of 8 

     
 

 

P
age 24



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY BOARD – 5th September 2017 
 

GENERAL EXCEPTION AND SPECIAL URGENCY DECISIONS 
 

Background 
 

The Chair (or their nominee) is given powers in the Council’s Constitution to give authorisation 
for key decisions to be made under the following rules: 
 
Rule 16 – General Exception 
 
Where the decision has not been placed on the Forward Plan, but it is possible to give 5 clear 
days notice of the decision to be made, Rule 16 allows that the decision may be made where the 
relevant Executive Director has obtained agreement in writing from the Chair of the Overview 
and Scrutiny Board (or his/her nominee) of the matter about which the decision is to be made. 
Notice of this setting out the reasons why compliance with the 28 day notice period was 
impracticable will be made available at the offices of the local Authority and be published on the 
Council’s website.  Any decision made in this way is still subject to a potential call-in. 
 
Rule 17 – Special Urgency:  
 
In certain circumstances it may be impracticable both to: 
 

1. Place the decision on the Forward Plan, and 
2. Give 5 clear days notice prior to the decision being made 

 
Rule 17 allows that in these circumstances the decision may still be made where the decision 
maker has obtained agreement from the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board (or his/her 
nominee) or if not available the Mayor or in their absence the Deputy Mayor.  As soon as it is 
reasonably practicable after the decision maker has received agreement from the Chair of 
Overview and Scrutiny that the decision is urgent and cannot be reasonably deferred, a notice 
will be made available at the offices of the local Authority setting out the reasons why 
compliance with the 28 days was impracticable and this will be published on the Council’s 
website. Where Rule 17 applies the decision is exempt from call-in. 
 
 
 
For the Municipal Year 2017/ 2018 the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Board is 
Councillor McLaren (Substitute Councillor Goodwin)  
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

Subject Matter Officer Rule 
Applied 

Date of Decision 
and Date of 
authorisation 

By Reason(s) for the decision  

Proposed Closure of 
AGMA Section 48 
Grants Programme 
 

Sheena 
MacFarlane, 
Head of 
Heritage, 
Libraries and 
Arts 

Rule 16 Decision:  21 
August 2017 
 
Authorisation:  14 
August 2017 

Councillor 
McLaren 

DECISION AUTHORISAED: 
 
For the report to be agreed and not subject to 
call-in.  The decision could not be reasonably 
deferred in order to comply with consultation 
timelines. 
 

 

P
age 26



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

1 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 
 

Economy and Enterprise Cabinet Portfolio 
 

RCR-09-
14 
 

Eastern Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

November 2017 Cabinet 

Description:  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

RCR-10-
14 
 

Western Gateway Town Centre Land and 
Property Acquisitions 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

November 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To acquire strategic land and properties across the Western Gateway of the Town Centre  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private for financial and commercial reasons 

ECEN-08-
16 
 

Oldham Property Partnerships - Final 
Reconciliation 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Reconciliation of money held in OPP joint venture.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report to be considered in private due to its commercial sensitivity and detailing of 
financial affairs. 

ECEN-20-
16 
 

Lyceum Buildings Refurbishment Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

February 2018 Cabinet 

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 9



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

2 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: The refurbishment & remodel of the Lyceum and associated buildings. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private per paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 
and it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the financial or business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-01-
17 
 

Queen Elizabeth Hall Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

November 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To review the options for the Queen Elizabeth Hall. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-02-
17 
 

Hotel Oldham Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

November 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To review the options for Hotel Oldham. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: The report will be considered in private by virtue of Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act as it is not in the public interest to disclose the information because it relates to the finanical or 
business affairs of the Council. 

ECEN-03-
17 
 

Disposal of former Byron Street School and land 
at Radcliffe Street 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Disposal of cleared, former School and Police Station, Byron Street and Radcliffe Street, Royton 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: None. 

ECEN-04-
16 
 

Disposal of former Counthill School Site, 
Counthill Lane 

Director of Economy 
and Skills 

September 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 28



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

3 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: Selection of Preferred Developer for Residential Development 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report will be Part A and B.  Part B is because it will contain financially sensitive 
information. 

ECEN-12-
17 
 

Oldham Heritage and Arts Centre/Oldham 
Coliseum Enabling Works 

Borough Solicitor 
(Paul Entwistle), 
Borough Treasurer, 
Director of Economy 
and Skills 

December 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Economy & 
Enterprise 
(Leader - 
Councillor Jean 
Stretton) 

Description: The implementation of enabling works in relation to the development of a new heritage and arts centre and a new theatre. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Part A Cabinet report (Oldham Cultural Quarter), 24th April 2017. 

 

Education and Early Years Cabinet Portfolio 
 

EDS-14-15 
 

Kingfisher School - Hydrotherapy Pool Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To determine funding and project structure for construction of replacement hydrotherapy pool at Kingfisher School.  
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private - financial information relevant to a competitive tender process 

P
age 29



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

4 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

EEY-11-16 
 

Grouped Schools PFI Contract Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial, 
Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Education and 
Early Years 
(Cllr Amanda 
Chadderton) 

Description: Building issues pertaining to Radclyffe and Failsworth schools 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Cabinet Report 
Private for financial and commercial reasons 

EEY-06-17 
New! 

Approval to extend the AGMA C018 Text and 
School Library Books Contract 

 September 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Education and 
Early Years 
(Cllr Amanda 
Chadderton) 

Description: Oldham Council on behalf of AGMA is the lead authority for the C018 Text and School Library Books Contract. The contract 
was from 1st August 2014 until 31st July 2017 with an option to extend for a further 12 months. With agreement from all participating 
AGMA authorities this report seeks approval to take up the 12 month extension provision. The value of the extension is approximately 
£350k. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private:  

 

Employment and Skills Cabinet Portfolio - None 
 

 

Social Care and Safeguarding Cabinet Portfolio 
 

P
age 30



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

5 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

SCS-07-17 
 

Request an exemption to Contract Procedure 
Rules to award a contract to KeyRing 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The report requests an exemption to the councils contract procedure rules in order to award a contract to KeyRing 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report, EIA, public 

SCS-08-17 
New! 

Adoption NoW Regional Adoption Agency Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The proposal is a move towards increased collaboration between North West local authorities and the government's agenda 
to establish regional adoption agencies 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Private.  The regional adoption agency involves details for 5 local authorities and 2 
voluntary organisations. 

SCS-09-17 
New! 

Contract Award for the Greater Manchester 
Autism Consortium 2017 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

September 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Social Care 
and 
Safeguarding 
(Cllr Jenny 
Harrison) 

Description: Request approval for Oldham Council to award contract on behalf of Greater Manchester health and social care authorities 
following recent open tender exercise 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: No documents to be considered. 
Private; reasons why: Market sensitive information prior to contracts being awarded 

 

Health and Wellbeing Cabinet Portfolio 
 

P
age 31



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

6 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

HWB-02-
17 
 

Integrated Drug and Alcohol Treatment System 
Contract Award 

Executive Director - 
Health and Wellbeing 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To agree the award of contract for an integrated drug and alcohol treatment system for Oldham and Rochdale, following a 
collaborative open tender. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report will considered in Private under Paragraph 3 due to commercial sensitivity 

 

Neighbourhoods and Cooperatives Cabinet Portfolio 
 

NEICO-06-
17 
New! 

Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

December 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: Oldham's Monitoring Report (AMR) covers the period 1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017 and sets out the five-year housing land 
position as at 1 April 2016. 
 
The requirement to produce monitoring reports is contained within Section 35 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as 
amended by para 113 of the Localism Act 2011). 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 
 
Background Documents: Authorities Monitoring Report 2016/17 
 

P
age 32



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

7 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

NEICO-07-
17 
New! 

Award of a new contract for delivering a bulky 
waste collection service 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 
Member - 
Neighbourhood
s and 
Cooperatives 
(Cllr Barbara 
Brownridge) 

Description: This is a delegated decision by the Cabinet Member for Economy, Neighbourhoods & Skills for the award of the new 
contract for bulky waste collections following the outcome of the evaluation of bids as a result of the competitive tender process. The 
contract will commence on 1st January 2018 and will run for 2 years with a 1 year + 1 year extension option. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: ModernGov report will be published as decision is taken. 

 

Environmental Services Cabinet Portfolio 
 

ENVS-04-
17 
 

Middleton Road Bridge Refurbishment - Tender 
Acceptance 

Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

November 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Decision requested is to accept the tender for Middleton Road Bridge Refurbishment.  
The project involves extensive repair works to a reinforced concrete structure. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Cabinet Report - Private, due to commercial confidentiality 

ENVS-05-
17 
 

Two Year Extension to NSL Contract Executive Director - 
Economy, Skills and 
Neighbourhoods 

September 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 33



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

8 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To seek Cabinet approval to extend the existing NSL Parking Management and Enforcement Contract period from the 25th 
June 2021 to 25th June 2023 (for a further 2 years), as provided for in Section F8 of the original Contract Agreement. 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Both a Public and Private Cabinet report is to be provided. 

 

Finance and HR Cabinet Portfolio 
 

CFHR-05-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Quarter 1 

The Chief Executive September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 30 June 2017 (Quarter 1) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Quarter 1 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

CFHR-06-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Quarter 2 

The Chief Executive December 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 34



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

9 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 30 September 2017 (Quarter 2) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Quarter 2 
 
Background Documents: Appendices – Various 
 
Report to be considered in Public 
 

CFHR-07-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Quarter 3 

The Chief Executive March 2018 Cabinet 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 31 December 2017 (Quarter 3) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Quarter 3 

CFHR-08-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue 
Monitor and Capital Investment Programme 
2017/18 Month 8 

The Chief Executive February 2018 Cabinet 

Description: The report provides an update on the Council’s 2017/18 forecast revenue budget position and the financial position of the 
capital programme as at the period ending 30 November 2017 (Month 8) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Report of the Director of Finance  – Revenue Monitor and Capital Investment 
Programme 2017/18 Month 8 

CFHR-09-
17 
 

The 2018/19 Council Tax Reduction Scheme Borough Treasurer November 2017 Cabinet 

P
age 35



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

10 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

Description: To consider a range of options for inclusion in the Council Tax Reduction Scheme for 2018/19 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: This is a public item 

CFHR-11-
17 
 

Report of the Director of Finance - Third Sector 
Loan 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

October 2017 Cabinet 

Description: Loan to Third Sector Organisation 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Report of the Director of Finance - Third Sector Loan 
The options and alternatives contained within the report are commercially sensitive. 
 
Background Documents: The appendix to the report will contain information that is commercially sensitive. 

CFHR-12-
17 
New! 

Report of the Director of Finance - Income 
Strategy 2018/19 to 2021/22 

Executive Director - 
Corporate and 
Commercial 

September 2017 Cabinet 

Description: To set out the Council's strategy for income generation for the current medium term financial planning period (2018/19 to 
2021/22) 
Document(s) to be considered in public or private: Proposed Report Title: Report of the Director of Finance - Income Strategy 2018/19 to 
2021/22 
 
Report to be considered in public 

 
 
 
 
 
Key: 
 
New! - indicates an item that has been added this month 

P
age 36



KEY DECISION DOCUMENT – COVERING DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN FROM 1 SEPTEMBER 2017  
 

11 
 

Key 
Decision 
Reference 

Subject Area For Decision Led By Decision Date Decision 
Taker 

 
Notes: 

1. The procedure for requesting details of documents listed to be submitted to decision takers for consideration is to contact the Contact 
Officer contained within the Key Decision Sheet for that item. The contact address for documents is Oldham Council, Civic Centre, 
West Street, Oldham, OL1 1UH. Other documents relevant to those matters may be submitted to the decision maker. 

2. Where on a Key Decision Sheet the Decision Taker is Cabinet, the list of its Members are as follows: Councillors Jean Stretton, 
Shoab Akhtar, Barbara Brownridge, Abdul Jabbar, Jenny Harrison, Eddie Moores, Fida Hussain and Amanda Chadderton. 

3. Full Key Decision details (including documents to be submitted to the decision maker for consideration, specific contact officer details 
and notification on if a report if likely to be considered in private) can be found via the online published plan at: 
http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0  P

age 37

http://committees.oldham.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=144&RD=0


T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Resident First Programme - Update
	7 Overview and Scrutiny Board Work Programme
	8 General Exceptions and Urgent Decisions
	9 Key Decision Document

